Mental Health Consultation Grant
FY2014 EEC Grant Fund Code 700

Questions and Answers 

Posted April 18, 2013
REVISED GRANT SUBMISSION DEADLINE

ALL FY14 Mental Health Consultation Grants are due by April 29, 2013, 4 PM.
FY2014 Eligibility/Submission Requirements 

Letters of Support from Programs

Q1. Do bidders need a letter of support for every program to be served? If not, does EEC require vendors to submit a specific number of letters of support from programs?
A1. The Grant Application requires applicants to submit letters of support from programs interested in receiving mental health consultation services.  The Grant Application does not specify a minimum or maximum number of letters of support.  However, letters of support should be obtained from programs and family child care providers within the geographic area (cities and towns) that the vendor proposes to serve. Failure to submit letters of support shall deem the vendor's response incomplete.
Distribution of Grants 
Grant Funded Regions and EEC Regions 
Q2. Appendix D: List of Towns and Cities in each EEC Region has information with two different region names and region numbers in the header of the document.  What is the difference between the "EEC Region (Grant)" and "Region”?

A2: Appendix D provides a list of the 351 towns and cities by their EEC grant region (i.e., Western MA, Central MA, Northeast, Southeast and Cape, Metro Boston) and their regional designations (EEC Regions 1-6, used for EEC licensing purposes and provided for informational purposes only).  The “EEC Region (Grant)” is the grant-specific funding region also used in the Online Application. 
Q3. What would EEC see as most advantageous relative to regional alignment for FY14:  Alignment with EPS grantee towns; Alignment with CCR&R contracted regions; Alignment with licensing regions; and/or Alignment with EEC regional area offices?

A3: As this is a competitive grant, EEC cannot comment on what regional alignment is “most advantageous.”  Bidders may apply to cover the entire Commonwealth, a specific region, and/ or geographic area(s) that cover specific cities, towns, and communities.  Bidders may also propose to serve multiple towns/ cities within multiple regions. 

FY 2014 Funding Formula

Q4.  Where did the 10 Data points used to determine each towns maximum allocation amount come from?

A4: In the Grant Application on page 11, the 10 Data Points are listed. Each of the data points are explained in further detail in Appendix E-2 
 :  Mental Health Consultation Grant Formula Narrative. 
Q5.  Is there any weighting in the funding formula? 

A5: All data points contributing to the funding formula were treated equally except for rural communities, Level 4 School Districts, and Gateway Communities. For each town a percentage was calculated (data for town divided by total). 

· Rural communities received an additional .69%.

· Level 4 School Districts received an additional 8.33%.

· Gateway communities received an additional 4.17%

 Appendix E-1 
 :  Demographic Information Regarding Cities and Towns in Massachusetts contains the specific data elements and maximum allocation amounts by town and each of the 10 data points are explained in further detail in Appendix E-2 
 .

In addition, when completing the online portion of the application the following data points are displayed and provide the calculated totals based upon each town selected for each grant funded region.
· Total funding ($) = Sum of Funding Distribution by Town based upon selected towns in that funding region
· Number of Licensed Providers = Data Point # 10 (Sum of Licensed Providers: Group & School Age, and FCCs based upon the selected towns in that funding region

· Average Number of Licensed Providers = Data Point # 6 (Sum of Licensed Providers: Group & School Age and FCCs based upon the selected towns in that funding region)
· Median Number of Families in Calendar Year 2012: = Data Point # 2 based upon the towns selected

· Median Number of Children in Calendar Year 2012: = Data Point #  4 based upon the towns selected
Q6.  Does Data Point #10 Licensed Child Care Programs include EEC Licensed Family Child Care (FCC) and EEC licensed Group and School Age Child Care? 
A6: Yes, Data Point 10 includes information on Licensed Child Care Programs as of February 12, 2013.  Bidders should be aware that the number of licensed programs may vary during the course of a twelve month period. 
Q7. The maximum allocation an agency is eligible to receive is based on the sum of allocation per town.  Do we need to limit the services based on an allocation by town?  For example, Fall River is eligible for $29,235 and Westport is eligible for $1,414. If there is much more demand in Fall River and very little or no demand in Westport, do we have to reserve $1,414 for services in Westport?
A7:  A grantee must prioritize the delivery of mental health services to programs and FCCs within its geographic service area, as outlined on page 7 of Grant Application. In the scenario above, a grantee who is awarded funds to serve a geographic service area comprised of Fall River and Westport may be awarded up to $30,649 to carry out all of the required services within these two towns.  This would include conducting outreach to 80 programs and family child care providers (FCCs) in that geographic service area and delivering mental health consultation services based upon programs’ and FCCs’ requests for such services.  
FY2014 Priorities and Required Services 

Mental Health Consultation Centralized Intake System 

Q8. What is the “centralized intake system” and how will it work? 
A8:  The centralized intake system, jointly designed by DMH and EEC, will be used by programs in EEC’s mixed delivery system that are seeking mental health consultation services from the FY2014 Mental Health Consultation Grantees.  Grantees are required to respond to referrals and requests for mental health consultation services within 48 hours and maintain a list of programs waiting for consultation services for 3 or more business days.  Grantees will receive training and instructions, prior to the full-scale implementation of the system. 
Q9. Will the centralized intake system be a web link that families and providers have access to?

A9:  Programs in EEC’s mixed delivery system will access the centralized intake system, using the EEC Online Application.  Families, other community service providers, and the general public will be able to access information about mental health consultation services along with other available mental health services and supports through MASS 2-1-1. (Please note that page 10 of the Grant Application outlines the required services related to MASS-2-1-1).
Q10. Will the centralized system receive inquiries for information or only a referral for specific services? 
A10:  The primary purpose of the centralized intake system is to process requests for mental health consultation services as received from programs and providers.  
Q11. Will the Online Application Web link simply provide contact information for the mental health consultation grantee or will it be a referral process that gathers data in a central location? 
A11:  Using the EEC Online Applications system, program administrators and family child care providers will be able to complete and submit a request for mental health consultation services.  Requests for services will require some basic information about their programs, as well as, answer questions regarding the nature of their request and the type(s) of mental health consultation services they seek.  

Q12. How will requests received from programs get to the local grantees? (Direct technology link, EEC staffing of the intake system, etc.) 

A12:  Request for services and general intake information submitted by programs will be delivered electronically to the appropriate/designated mental health consultation grantee(s). Mental Health Grantees, EEC and DMH will also use the EEC Online Application system to access information in the centralized intake system. 
Prioritizations for Service Delivery: Public and Private Schools (EEC License-Exempt Programs) 
Q13. It is my understanding that public schools are ineligible to receive mental health consultation services through the statewide system of mental health consultation services as currently funded. On page 6, the FY2014 Grant Application seems to state that public and private schools are also eligible for services.  Can EEC confirm that this is accurate and a change from the prior fiscal years (FY12 and FY13).

A13: Yes, mental health consultation services should be provided to programs in EEC’s mixed delivery system including private and public schools.  However, mental health consultation service requests from preschool and after school programs operated by school districts and public schools must be approved by EEC on a case-by-case basis.

Workforce Development
Q14. EEC is using examples of personnel positions for direct service positions in the Grant Application and in the drop down list of the budget (i.e. clinician, social worker, behavioral specialist.)  Since their total salaries and the salary range may vary, as a result of the individual’s licensure, years of experience, and depth of training, knowledge, and experience in early childhood mental health, does EEC differentiate between these positions?  
A14: EEC is aware of the diverse nature of the Early Childhood Mental health field.  The various position titles referenced in the application and the budget workbook are offered as examples only.  Bidders should refer to pages 7 -9 of the Grant Application, the Narrative Questions, and the budget workbook instructions for information regarding workforce requirements and staffing expectations. 
Standards /Assessment /Accountability

Q15. Are bidders directed to use specific kinds of assessments or may they elect to use assessment tools of their choosing? 

A15: EEC has not directed bidders to use a specific assessment tool; however, Mental Health Consultants must have the capacity to implement evidence-based assessment practices. 
Training and Coaching for Educators 

Q16. The Grant Application says that Mental Health Consultation grantees can provide focused trainings. Are there specific parameters and criteria that these training sessions must meet?  For example do these training sessions need to be provided for a certain number of hours (per session); are sessions for one classroom of educators or the entire program?
A16: Focused training for educators may be provided within the context of delivering specific program-focused or classroom-focused mental health consultation services to support educators in implementing a specific intervention.  The number of sessions, the session’s duration, and the participants invited should be based upon programs’ and providers’ identified needs and incorporated in Mental Health Consultation scope of the services planning document with each program and family child care provider. 
Q17. Can EEC please clarify whether other programs may be included in the focused training sessions?  

A17. When grantees deliver mental health consultation services to more than one program or family child care provider that has a shared need for focused training on the same topic, joint training sessions may be offered to maximize grant resources.  Grantees should incorporate joint training sessions in the Mental Health Consultation scope of the services planning document and report on the trainings provided to each program and provider. 

Q18. Will educators that attend these sessions get EEC training hours, CEUs or certificates for training hours? 
A18: No, educators that attend training sessions offered by Mental Health Consultation Services grantees will not receive EEC training hours, CEUs or certificates.  EEC has made significant investments in professional development and training opportunities for educators across that promote positive social and emotional development and identify and reduce the impact of behavioral and emotional distress.  Some examples of offered trainings include: “Helping Young Children Develop Empathy”, “Introduction to Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) –Strategies for Working with Young Children”, “Mental Health Issues in Young Children, and “Understanding and Dealing with Challenging Behavior and Temperaments in School-Age Children”.  These opportunities continue to be available through EEC’s Educator and Provider Support (EPS) grantees and the Readiness Centers.  As a general rule, programs and educators should be referred to EEC’s Educator and Provider Support (EPS) grantees and the Readiness Centers to access professional development that address these broader training topics, as they do offer academic  currency (CEU, course credits, etc.). 
Q19. Can the Mental Health Consultation grantee use these funds to provide “coaching” to program and educators?  Is there any conflict with the coaching made available through the Educator Provider Support Grant (EPS)?
A19: Coaching within the context of Mental Health Consultation model is specifically for strengthening educators’ capacities to reflect, problem solve, and be effective in their roles and  to help educators identify risks and prevent or reduce social-emotional and behavioral concerns that might arise (in the classroom).   EEC does not foresee a conflict with the EPS coaching as long as Mental Health Consultation Services Grantees offer coaching for the purposes described above.
Q20. Through one of the past Mental Health grants,  our agency had been able to provide parent trainings on topics such as managing your child’s behavior, helping your child to use feeling language, and partnering with teachers.  The goal of these trainings has been to support social and emotional health in one’s child, with a further goal of enabling children to have more success in both their homes and preschool and childcare settings.  In the context of a specific consultation, can workshops be delivered to parents if a concern common to many parents is discovered?  

A20: Parent support trainings are not an allowable use of funding.  Mental Health Consultation grantees should build relationships and linkages with other available and appropriate community resources, such as EEC’s Coordinated Family and Community Engagement (CFCE) grantees. If grantees identify trends in parental support needs relative to children’s social and emotional development, the grantees should share this information with the local CFCE grantee(s) and must notify DMH.  
Q21. Can parents be included in the focused-trainings that are provided to programs? 

A21: Parent participation in the focused-trainings may be decided jointly between the mental health grantee and the program. As stated in the response to Question 16, “the participants invited to the focused-training sessions should be based upon the program’s identified needs, as discussed and determined with the programs and providers, and incorporated in Mental Health Consultation scope of the services planning document with each program and family child care provider, and documented through monthly performance reporting.  
Inform Families and Communities and Strengthen Linkages to Community Supports

Q22. If funded, can we get a provider listing by town with contact information that includes email addresses?

A22: Yes, EEC will provide contact information for licensed programs and family child care providers to successful bidders.  Bidders are directed to EEC’s website to obtain information about currently licensed programs and family child care providers by town using the “Find Early Education & Care Programs” link located on the front page of EEC’s website at http://www.mass.gov/edu/birth-grade-12/early-education-and-care/find-early-education-and-care-programs/ .
Third Party Billing

Q23. Can you please clearly describe the expectation for grantees around third party billing?
A23: All direct services for individual child mental health services and/or family therapeutic services must be funded through other sources or through a referral to third party mental health services providers.  Grantees will be required to manage referrals and track utilization of clinical, family supports, and therapeutic interventions that include the primary reason for referral(s), the results of the referral(s), and third party billing sources, when feasible.  Grantees should also establish formal mechanisms to obtain feedback on children or families who are referred for additional services and support. 
Use of Funds

Q24. Is it allowable to use grant funds to pay a 3rd party evaluators? If allowable is this an advisable use of Mental Health Consultation Grant funds? 

A24:  No, the cost of a third party evaluator is not an allowable use of FY2014 Mental Health Consultation Grant funding.  
Budget Workbook 

Q25. The budget workbook requires that we enter the name of the person for each position. What if we don’t have a staff member hired for a particular position?  How do you list these positions?  

A25:  Bidders must include FTE, salary, and fringe information in the budget for all of the positions they propose to fund, if awarded the FY14 Mental Health Consultation Grant.  When completing the budget, for any positions that a bidder anticipates proposing to fund, please enter “TBD - Position Title” and select appropriate position title from the Title drop down menu.  Please note the position titles selected in budget workbook must also align with the corresponding position titles, used in the job descriptions and resumes as outlined in Narrative Question 3b and the Mental Health Consultation Grant Application Checklist. 

Q26. How do you put mileage in for each consultant who travels to sites?

A26:  Travel to and from programs that request mental health consultation services is an “every-day expense”.  Bidders should provide an estimate of the anticipated mileage for each staff member.  When completing Travel in Tab # 5 for each staffing position, Bidders should consider the following:  the number of trips based on the projected/potential service need; the estimated number of trips per month; and the estimated distance relative to the town and cities to be served.

 The budget narrative should be used to further explain the purpose of the travel and the rationale.  For example, staff member A anticipates visits to 10 programs per month with an average distance of 10 miles per trip.
EEC is aware that these are projected/anticipated expenses.  After the grant is awarded, grantees may make a request to amend the dollar amount for this line item using the budget amendment process, if needed. 
Narrative Questions

Q27. Narrative Question 1 requires that the bidder completes information using charts.  Are the charts in section 1c included in the 2 page response limit, as they are sub-components of Narrative Question 1? 
A27. The charts in Sections 1c-1 Children Served, 1c-2. Families with Children Served, 1c-3 Educators Served, and 1c-4. Providers Served are not considered part of the two (2) page response limit for Narrative Question 1.  
The Narrative Questions also includes the sub- component question “Other: Please provide additional supporting information related to your responses to the required services aforementioned above.”   The responses that bidders provide for “Other” are included in the two (2) page response limit. 
Q28. Regarding Narrative Question 1c-1 & 1c-2, are we expected to try to serve a particular number of children in each age group?  Families in each town?  

A28. The Grant Application is silent on the particular number of children to be served in each age group and the particular number of families to be served in each town.
Grant application responses must demonstrate, a bidder’s ability to provide mental health consultation services to programs that serve children from birth through age 13 (until a child’s 14th birthday), prioritizing programs serving children birth to age eight.  The Grant Application also indicates that mental health consultation services should be prioritized for programs where these services will benefit the greatest number of at-risk children and children and families identified as “high needs”.  
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